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appropriation under the public land 
laws, including selection by the State of 
Alaska under the Alaska Statehood Act, 
location and entry under the mining 
laws, leasing under the Mineral Leasing 
Act of February 25, 1920, as amended, 
and selection by Regional Corporations 
under section 12 of the ANCSA, subject 
to valid existing rights, the provisions of 
existing withdrawals, other segregations 
of record, and the requirements of 
applicable law. All valid applications 
received at or prior to 8 a.m. AKST on 
November 5, 2018, shall be considered 
as simultaneously filed at that time. 
Those received thereafter shall be 
considered in the order of filing. 
Appropriation of any of the lands 
referenced in this order under the 
mining laws prior to the date and time 
of restoration is unauthorized. Any such 
attempted appropriation, including 
attempted adverse possession under 30 
U.S.C. 38, shall vest no rights against 
the United States. State law governs acts 
required to establish a location and to 
initiate a right of possession where not 
in conflict with Federal law. The BLM 
will not intervene in disputes between 
rival locators over possessory rights 
since Congress has provided for such 
determinations in local courts. 

5. The lands described in paragraph 2 
have been conveyed out of Federal 
ownership. For those lands this is a 
record clearing action only. 

Dated: September 26, 2018. 
Joseph R. Balash, 
Assistant Secretary, Land and Minerals 
Management. 
[FR Doc. 2018–21641 Filed 10–3–18; 8:45 am] 
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AGENCY: Bureau of Land Management, 
Interior. 
ACTION: Notice of temporary closure. 

SUMMARY: The Las Vegas Field Office 
announces the temporary closure of 
certain public lands under its 
administration in Clark County, NV. 
This temporary closure is being made in 
the interest of public safety in relation 
to the authorized 2018 Rise Lantern 
Festival. This temporary closure 
controls access to multiple points of 
entry to the festival located on the Jean 
Dry Lake bed in order to minimize the 
risk of vehicle collisions with festival 

participants and workers. The 
temporary closure also ensures adequate 
time to conduct clean-up of the festival 
location. 
DATES: The temporary closure takes 
effect at 12:01 a.m. on October 5, 2018, 
and remains in effect until 11:59 p.m. 
on October 6, 2018. 
ADDRESSES: The temporary closure 
order, communications plan, and map 
of the temporary closure area will be 
posted at the BLM Las Vegas Field 
Office, 4701 North Torrey Pines Drive, 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89130 and on the 
BLM website: www.blm.gov. These 
materials will also be posted at the 
access point of Jean Dry Lake Bed and 
the surrounding areas. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Kenny Kendrick, Outdoor Recreation 
Planner, (702) 515–5073, Kkendrick@
blm.gov. Persons who use a 
telecommunications device for the deaf 
(TDD) may call the Federal Relay 
Service (FRS) at 1–800–877–8339 to 
contact the above individual during 
normal business hours. The FRS is 
available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, 
to leave a message or question with the 
above individual. You will receive a 
reply during normal business hours. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: The Las 
Vegas Field Office announces the 
temporary closure of selected public 
lands under its administration. This 
action is being taken to help ensure 
public safety and prevent unnecessary 
environmental degradation during the 
official Special Recreation Permit of the 
2018 Rise Lantern Festival. The public 
lands affected by this temporary closure 
are described as follows: 

Mount Diablo Meridian, Nevada 
T. 24 S., R. 60 E., 

Sec. 21, that portion lying easterly and 
southerly of the easterly and southerly 
right-of-way boundary of State Route 
604; 

Sec. 22; 
Secs. 27 thru 28; 
Sec. 29, and 32 that portion lying easterly 

and southerly of the easterly and 
southerly right-of-way boundary of State 
Route 604; 

Secs. 33, and 34. 
T. 25 S., R. 60 E., 

Sec. 2, W1/2; 
Secs. 3 thru 5; 
Secs. 8 thru 10; 
Sec. 11, W1/2; 
Sec. 14, W1/2; 
Secs. 15 thru 17. 

Roads leading into the public lands 
under the temporary closure will be 
posted to notify the public of the 
temporary closure. The temporary 
closure area includes the Jean Dry Lake 
Bed and is bordered by Hidden Valley 
to the east, the Sheep Mountain to the 

southwest, and the right-of-way 
boundary of State Route 604. Under the 
authority of Section 303(a) of the 
Federal Lands Policy and Management 
Act of 1976 (43 U.S.C. 1733(a)), 43 CFR 
8360.0–7 and 43 CFR 8364.1, the BLM 
will enforce the following rules in the 
area described above: 

The entire area as listed in the legal 
description above is closed to all 
vehicles and personnel except Law 
Enforcement, Emergency Vehicles, 
event personnel, and ticketed festival 
participants. Access routes leading to 
the temporarily closed area are closed to 
vehicles. No vehicle stopping or parking 
in the closed area except for designated 
parking areas will be permitted. Festival 
participants are required to remain 
within designated spectator areas only. 

The following restrictions will be in 
effect for the duration of the temporary 
closure to ensure public safety of 
festival participants. Unless otherwise 
authorized, the following activities 
within the closure area are prohibited: 

• Camping. 
• Possession and/or consuming any 

alcoholic beverage unless the person has 
reached the age of 21 years. 

• Discharging, or use of firearms, or 
other weapons. 

• Possession and/or discharging of 
fireworks. 

• Allowing any pet or other animal in 
their care to be unrestrained at any time. 
Animals must be on a leash or other 
restraint no longer than 3 feet. 

• Operation of any vehicle including 
any off-highway vehicle (OHV) and Golf 
Carts within the closure area, except 
along designated event routes to and 
from entrance/exit points and parking 
areas; or designated event vehicles and 
official vehicles. 

• Parking any vehicle in violation of 
posted restrictions, or in such a manner 
as to obstruct or impede normal or 
emergency traffic movement or the 
parking of other vehicles, create a safety 
hazard, or endanger any person, 
property or feature. Vehicles so parked 
are subject to citation, removal and 
impoundment at the owner’s expense. 

• Operating a vehicle through, around 
or beyond a restrictive sign, 
recognizable barricade, fence or traffic 
control barrier or device. 

Signs and maps directing the public 
to designated spectator areas will be 
provided by the event sponsor. 

Exceptions: Temporary closure 
restrictions do not apply to activities 
conducted under contract with the 
BLM, agency personnel monitoring the 
event, or activities conducted under an 
approved plan of operation. Authorized 
users must have in their possession, a 
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written permit or contract from BLM 
signed by the authorized officer. 

Enforcement: Any person who 
violates this temporary closure may be 
tried before a United States Magistrate 
and fined in accordance with 18 U.S.C. 
3571, imprisoned no more than 12 
months under 43 U.S.C. 1733(a) and 43 
CFR 8360.0–7, or both. In accordance 
with 43 CFR 8365.1–7, State or local 
officials may also impose penalties for 
violations of Nevada law. 
(Authority: 43 CFR 8360.0–7 and 
8364.1) 

Gayle Marrs-Smith, 
Field Manager—Las Vegas Field Office. 
[FR Doc. 2018–21650 Filed 10–3–18; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 4310–HC–P 

INTERNATIONAL TRADE 
COMMISSION 

[Investigation No. 337–TA–1135] 

Certain Strength-Training Systems and 
Components Thereof Institution of 
Investigation 

AGENCY: U.S. International Trade 
Commission 
ACTION: Notice. 

SUMMARY: Notice is hereby given that a 
complaint was filed with the U.S. 
International Trade Commission on 
September 4, 2018, under section 337 of 
the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, on 
behalf of Hoist Fitness Systems, Inc. of 
Poway, California. A supplement to the 
Complaint was filed on September 14, 
2018. The complaint, as supplemented, 
alleges violations of section 337 based 
upon the importation into the United 
States, the sale for importation, and the 
sale within the United States after 
importation of certain strength-training 
systems and components thereof by 
reason of infringement of certain claims 
of U.S. Patent No. 7,549,949 (‘‘the ’949 
patent’’); U.S. Patent No. 7,563,209 (‘‘the 
’209 patent’’); U.S. Patent No. 7,594,880 
(‘‘the ’880 patent’’); U.S. Patent No. 
7,654,938 (‘‘the ’938 patent’’); and U.S. 
Patent No. 7,976,440 (‘‘the ’440 patent’’). 
The complaint, as supplemented, 
further alleges that an industry in the 
United States exists as required by the 
applicable Federal Statute. 

The complainant requests that the 
Commission institute an investigation 
and, after the investigation, issue a 
limited exclusion order and cease and 
desist orders. 
ADDRESSES: The complaint, except for 
any confidential information contained 
therein, is available for inspection 
during official business hours (8:45 a.m. 

to 5:15 p.m.) in the Office of the 
Secretary, U.S. International Trade 
Commission, 500 E Street SW, Room 
112, Washington, DC 20436, telephone 
(202) 205–2000. Hearing impaired 
individuals are advised that information 
on this matter can be obtained by 
contacting the Commission’s TDD 
terminal on (202) 205–1810. Persons 
with mobility impairments who will 
need special assistance in gaining access 
to the Commission should contact the 
Office of the Secretary at (202) 205– 
2000. General information concerning 
the Commission may also be obtained 
by accessing its internet server at 
https://www.usitc.gov. The public 
record for this investigation may be 
viewed on the Commission’s electronic 
docket (EDIS) at https://edis.usitc.gov. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Katherine Hiner, Office of the Secretary, 
Docket Services Division, U.S. 
International Trade Commission, 
telephone (202) 205–1802. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: 

Authority: The authority for 
institution of this investigation is 
contained in section 337 of the Tariff 
Act of 1930, as amended, 19 U.S.C. 
1337, and in section 210.10 of the 
Commission’s Rules of Practice and 
Procedure, 19 CFR 210.10 (2018). 

Scope of Investigation: Having 
considered the complaint, the U.S. 
International Trade Commission, on 
September 28, 2018, Ordered that— 

(1) Pursuant to subsection (b) of 
section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as 
amended, an investigation be instituted 
to determine whether there is a 
violation of subsection (a)(1)(B) of 
section 337 in the importation into the 
United States, the sale for importation, 
or the sale within the United States after 
importation of certain products 
identified in paragraph (2) by reason of 
infringement of one or more of claims 2, 
8, and 23 of the ’949 patent; claims 6 
and 21 of the ’209 patent; claim 22 of 
the ’880 patent; claims 1, 12, and 13 of 
the ’938 patent; and claims 5, 12, 13, 
and 20 of the ’440 patent; and whether 
an industry in the United States exists 
as required by subsection (a)(2) of 
section 337; 

(2) Pursuant to section 210.10(b)(1) of 
the Commission’s Rules of Practice and 
Procedure, 19 CFR 210.10(b)(1), the 
plain language description of the 
accused products or category of accused 
products, which defines the scope of the 
investigation, is ‘‘machines with a 
dynamic user support used to perform 
chest press, fly or butterfly, abdominal, 
shoulder press, triceps dip, triceps 
extension, rowing, lat pulldown, bicep 
curl, seated dip, chin up, lateral raise, 

inner and outer thigh, low back, glute, 
leg extension, leg curl, and/or leg press 
exercises’’; 

(3) For the purpose of the 
investigation so instituted, the following 
are hereby named as parties upon which 
this notice of investigation shall be 
served: 

(a) The complainant is: Hoist Fitness 
Systems, Inc., 11900 Community Road, 
Poway, CA 92064. 

(b) The respondents are the following 
entities alleged to be in violation of 
section 337, and are the parties upon 
which the complaint is to be served: 

TuffStuff Fitness International, Inc., 
13971 Norton Avenue, Chino, CA 
91710. 

Shandong Relax Health Industry Co., 
Lt, No. 6 Tainshan 2 Road, Jimo City, 
Qingdao, Shandong Province, 266000, 
China. 

(4) For the investigation so instituted, 
the Chief Administrative Law Judge, 
U.S. International Trade Commission, 
shall designate the presiding 
Administrative Law Judge. 

The Office of Unfair Import 
Investigations will not be named as a 
party in this investigation. 

Responses to the complaint and the 
notice of investigation must be 
submitted by the named respondents in 
accordance with section 210.13 of the 
Commission’s Rules of Practice and 
Procedure, 19 CFR 210.13. Pursuant to 
19 CFR 201.16(e) and 210.13(a), such 
responses will be considered by the 
Commission if received not later than 20 
days after the date of service by the 
Commission of the complaint and the 
notice of investigation. Extensions of 
time for submitting responses to the 
complaint and the notice of 
investigation will not be granted unless 
good cause therefor is shown. 

Failure of a respondent to file a timely 
response to each allegation in the 
complaint and in this notice may be 
deemed to constitute a waiver of the 
right to appear and contest the 
allegations of the complaint and this 
notice, and to authorize the 
administrative law judge and the 
Commission, without further notice to 
the respondent, to find the facts to be as 
alleged in the complaint and this notice 
and to enter an initial determination 
and a final determination containing 
such findings, and may result in the 
issuance of an exclusion order or a cease 
and desist order or both directed against 
the respondent. 

By order of the Commission. 

VerDate Sep<11>2014 17:43 Oct 03, 2018 Jkt 247001 PO 00000 Frm 00058 Fmt 4703 Sfmt 4703 E:\FR\FM\04OCN1.SGM 04OCN1da
ltl

an
d 

on
 D

S
K

B
B

V
9H

B
2P

R
O

D
 w

ith
 N

O
T

IC
E

S

https://edis.usitc.gov
https://www.usitc.gov

		Superintendent of Documents
	2018-10-04T02:02:38-0400
	US GPO, Washington, DC 20401
	Superintendent of Documents
	GPO attests that this document has not been altered since it was disseminated by GPO




